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IMPORTANT  NOTICE  REGARDING  ACCEPTANCE  OF  NOTICES
FOR  PUBLICATION  IN  THE  WEEKLY  “GAZETTE”

ATTENTION is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance
of Notices for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of
publication. All Government Departments, Corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times
of applications in respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared
by giving adequate time both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those
interested in the contents of such notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect
of corrections pertaining to notification will not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e.
notices for publication in the weekly Gazette of 27th April, 2012 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on
11th April, 2012.

LAKSHMAN  GOONEWARDENA,
Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing,
Colombo 08,
January 01, 2012.

AA

N. B :- Parts I-III and IV(A) of the Gazette No. 1,754 of 11.04.2012 were not published.
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Other Appointments, &c.,
No. 362 of 2012

SRI     LANKA   AIR  FORCE

Promotions approved by the Commander of the Air Force

UNDERMENTIONED Officers are promoted to the rank of Flight
Lieutenant with effect from the dates stated against their names.

Flying AGAMPODI NILU HIMALI Medical 21.12.2010
Officer MENDIS (02651)

Flying BASNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE Medical 06.05.2011
Officer KUSHAN DHANUSHKA BANDARA

BASNAYAKE (02649)
Flying RANKOTH SUMUDU SRINATH Medical 06.05.2011

Officer JAYATHILAKE (02650)
Flying WILLEGODA WICKRAMAGE E/Eng 07.05.2011

Officer BIYANKA HARSHANA (02620)
Flying CHANDRAKANTHA DHANANJAYA Tech/Eng 07.05.2011
Officer KARUNARATNE (02621)

Flying CHETHIYA TERRENCE DHARMASIRI Tech/Eng 21.12.2011
Officer GUNAWARDANA (02622)

Flying RATHUGAMAGE SAMITH THUSHAN Tech/Eng 07.05.2011
Officer AROGGYA FERNANDO (02623)

Flying PATHTHINI GEDARA GAYAN GD/P 07.05.2011
Officer KAUSHALYA BOWATTE (02624)

Flying MAHEEPALA GUNASEELA Tech/Eng 07.05.2011
Officer JAYAWARDENA

WIDANAPATHIRANALAGE

RAKHITA LAKMAL

WICKRAMARATNE (02625)
Flying SRI RAMA BRAHMANA E/Eng 07.05.2011

Officer ATHAPATHTHU MUDIYANSELAGE

AJITH MADURASINGHE (02626)
Flying THARAKA SHASHANKA Tech/Eng 07.05.2011

Officer HEWAWELLALA (02627)
Flying WICKRAMAARACHCHI Tech/Eng 07.05.2011

Officer APPUHAMILLAGE ANURUDDHA

SANJEEWA WICKRAMAARACHCHI

(02628)
Flying NANAYAKKARAWASAM E/Eng 07.05.2011

Officer KARIJJAWATHTHAGE NALAKA

SANJEEWA NANAYAKKARA

(02629)
Flying SINGANKUTTI ARACHCHIGE DON E/Eng 07.05.2011

Officer SANJEEWA SUBASINGHE (02630)
Flying HALKE WIDANELAGE NIROSH GD/P 07.05.2011

Officer WANASINGHE (02631)

H. D. ABEYWICKRAMA,
Air Marshal,

Commander of the Air Force.

Colombo,
31st March, 2012.

04-572/3

No. 363 of 2012

SRI    LANKA   VOLUNTEER   AIR   FORCE

Promotion approved by Commander of the Air Force

TO be Officer Flight Lieutenant with effect from 16th March, 2012.

Flying Officer HEMANTHA PUSHPAKUMARA GALKOLAGE (V/0431) -
Medical.

H. D. ABEYWICKRAMA,
Air Marshal,

Commander of the Air Force.

Colombo.

04-506

No. 364 of 2012

SRI     LANKA   AIR  FORCE

Promotions approved by the Commander of the Air Force

UNDERMENTIONED Officers are promoted to the Rank of Flying
Officer with effect from the dates stated against their names:-

Pilot WIJESINGHE ARACHCHILAGE Tech/Eng 14.12.2010
Officer CHAMARA SANDAKALUM

WIJESINGHE (02990)
Pilot BOTHALAWA ARACHCHIGE GD/P 07.11.2011

Officer DILSHAN HASANGA BANDARA

KITHSIRI (02886)
Pilot ATUWAGAWA GEDARA BUDDHIKA Logistics 07.11.2011

Officer PRABATH KUMARASINGHE (02887)
Pilot RAJAGURU DEPANAMAGE Logistics 07.11.2011

Officer PABASARA BANDARA RAJAGURU

(02888)
Pilot MAWEEKUMBURE Logistics 07.11.2011

Officer MANTHREETHILAKA

JAYASIRI GAMARALAGE

VIMUKTHI ANUPAMA

JAYASIRI (02889)
Pilot WIJESINGHA APPUHAMILAGE Logistics 07.11.2011

Officer JANAKA WIJESINGHE (02890)
Pilot ISURU LAKMAL JAYATHILAKA Admin 07.11.2011

Officer (02891)
Pilot KARAWE THANTHREEGE AMILA Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer MADUSANKA PERERA (02892)
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Pilot CHETHIYA ASSAJI Ad/Regt 07.11.2011
Officer NAWALAHEWAGE (02893)

Pilot KALPA ANURANGA Admin 07.11.2011
Officer RAJAGURU (02894)

Pilot SUBASINGHE ARACHCHIGE INDIKA GD/P 07.11.2011
Officer NIROSHAN (02895)

Pilot VISHWA LAKMEWAN Logistics 07.11.2011
Officer ATHUKORALA (02896)

Pilot MALLAWA ARACHCHIGE DON Ad/Regt 07.11.2011
Officer SUPUN BUDDHIKA (02897)

Pilot LADDASINGHA SEMBUKUTTI Logistics 07.11.2011
Officer ARACHCHILAGE ANUSHKA

DILSHAN JAYARATNE (02898)
Pilot KIMBULOBBE HERATH Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer MUDIYANSELAGE CHAMINDA

INDUNIL (02899)
Pilot KONGALA HETTI ARACHCHIGE Admin 07.11.2011

Officer SAMEERA INDUNIL SANDARUWAN

(02900)
Pilot KALUWA DEWAGE THILINA Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer MADUSANKA WIJESINGHA

(02901)
Pilot HINDURANGALAGE DON Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer KALINGA RASHAN (02902)
Pilot RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE GD/P 07.11.2011

Officer HARINDA VISHVAJITH

RATHNAYAKA (02903)
Pilot IDAM GAMAGEDARA MANJULA Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer ASANKA GAMAGE (02904)
Pilot KARIYAWASAM HAPUTHRANTRIGE Admin 07.11.2011

Officer RAVI VIJAYASIRI KARIYAWASAM

(02905)
Pilot KURUGAMAGE SUMEDHA SHENAL GD/P 07.11.2011

Officer PERERA (02906)
Pilot KISHAN JUDE MADDHUMA Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer RANASINGHE (02907)
Pilot ASANKA DANANJAYA Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer GUNATHILAKE (02908)
Pilot THUSE COORAY MOHOTTI GD/P 07.11.2011

Officer GURUNNANSELAGE RUMESH

DILSHAN COORAY (02909)
Pilot BAMBARENDA GURUGE KASUN GD/P 07.11.2011

Officer ERANDA (02910)
Pilot LANSAKARA KULATHUNGHA Ops Air 07.11.2011

Officer MUDIYANSELAGE KASHYAPA

BANDARA ALAWALA (02911)
Pilot DISSANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE Ops Air 07.11.2011

Officer PRABATH THUSITHA KUMARA

DISSANAYAKE (02912)
Pilot RANASINGHE ARACHCHILAGE DON Admin 07.11.2011

Officer EMANGA PIUMAL  RANASINGHE

(02913)
Pilot ATHULDUWA ARACHCHIGE DON Ops Air 07.11.2011

Officer SACHITH HASANTHA PATHMASIRI

(02914)
Pilot SUBAWICKRAMA MALLIKA Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer VIDANA ARACHCHIGE LASANTHA

VIDURANGA (02915)

Pilot AMILA INDIKA WANIGASEKARA Admin 07.11.2011
Officer (02916)

Pilot RANASINGHE ARACHCHILAGE Ops Air 07.11.2011
Officer LAKSHIKA LUSHAN RANASINGHE

(02917)
Pilot GALAGEDARAGE DANUSHKA Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer VIRAJ GALAGEDARA (02918)
Pilot HALLOLUWA KANKANAMGE Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer SANJAYA ANURADHA SILVA

(02919)
Pilot DASSANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer PRASAD SANDARUWAN

DASANAYAKA (02920)
Pilot KIRIKITHTHE BATHTHANA Ops Air 07.11.2011

Officer MUDIYANSELAGE MAHESH

BUDDIKA RATHNAYAKA

BANDARA (02921)
Pilot SENANAYAKE ACHCHIGE Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer DUMINDA SAMPATH SENANAYAKE

(02922)
Pilot MARASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE E/Eng 07.11.2011

Officer LAHIRU DUSHYANTHA

ABEYRATHNE (02923)
Pilot DON INDIKA WITHANACHCHI E/Eng 07.11.2011

Officer (02924)
Pilot JAYASUNDARAGE PIUMI Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer SEWWANDI (OW/01083)
Pilot AGAMPATHI LIYANARACHCHIGE Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer MINOLI AGAMPATHI

LIYANARACHCHI (OW/01084)
Pilot HENARATH HETTIARACHCHIGE Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer SUBHASHINI JAYAMALI

WIJAYASIRI (OW/01085)
Pilot EKANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE Ad/Regt 07.11.2011

Officer SHAKILA GEHANI EKANAYAKE

(OW/01086)

H. D. ABEYWICKRAMA,
Air Marshal,

Commander of the Air Force.

Colombo,
31st March, 2012.

04-572/2

No. 365 of 2012

SRI     LANKA   AIR  FORCE

Promotions approved by the Commander of the Air Force

UNDERMENTIONED Officers are promoted to the rank of Flying
Officer with effect from the dates stated against their names.

Pilot KAMATHAWATHTHA VALAUWE E/Eng 27.02.2011
Officer BUDDHIKA BANDARA

KAMATHAWATHTHA (02767)
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Pilot WAJIRA PRIYANKARA Log 23.03.2011
Officer GUNAWARDHANA (T/11523)

Pilot WARNAKULA MANOJ JEEWANTHA Tech/Eng 23.03.2011
Officer MENDIS (T/11527)

Pilot YAPA MUDIYANSELAGE SAMEERA GD/P 23.03.2011
Officer INDIKA BANDARA (T/11531)

Pilot ABDUL RAHEEM HAFIZ BOOSO GD/P 23.03.2011
Officer (T/11532)

Pilot UCHITHE SUWINDE HOLMES GD/P 23.03.2011
Officer (T/11533)

Pilot RANASINGHE ARACHCHIGE GAYAN GD/P 23.03.2011
Officer PRASANNA RANASINGHE (T/11534)

Pilot PALATUWA MAHINA GAMAGE Tech/Eng 23.03.2011
Officer SURESH DEEPAL DHEERASINGHE

(T/11535)
Pilot PALENDA APPUHAMILAGE DON E/Eng 23.03.2011

Officer THARINDU CHATHURANGA

PADMASIRI (T/11536)
Pilot THELGE GAYAN THISNAKA PEIRIS Tech/Eng 23.03.2011

Officer (T/11537)
Pilot UDAGE ACHCHIGE WATHSHALA Tech/Eng 23.03.2011

Officer UDAYANGA PREMARATHNE

(T/11538)
Pilot KASUN MADUSHA AFC 23.03.2011

Officer WICKRAMATHUNGE (T/11539)
Pilot WEDAYALAGE MANJULA E/Eng 27.04.2011

Officer KRISHANTHA WEDAGE (02793)
Pilot DISSANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE E/Eng 27.04.2011

Officer LAKSHMAN GNANASIRI JAYASENA

(02794)
Pilot MEEGASWATTE DISSANAYAKE E/Eng 27.04.2011

Officer MUDIYANSELAGE RAVINDRA

UDAYA BANDARA DISSANAYAKE

(02795)
Pilot KATHIRESAN MOHAN E/Eng 27.04.2011

Officer CHANDRAPRKASH (02796)

H. D. ABEYWICKRAMA,
Air Marshal,

Commander of the Air Force.

Colombo,
31st March, 2012.

04-572/1

No. 366  of  2012

I, Rauff Hakeem, Minister of Justice, by virtue of powers vested in
me by Section 45(2) of the Judicature Act, No. 02 of 1978 do here
by appoint.

01. Miss HIDDADURA DAYANI DE SOYZA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

02. Mr. VISHWA NAYANA LOKUGAMAGE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

03. Mr. MADDUMAGE SUMITH PRIYANTHA PERERA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

04. Mrs. WANNI WEDE GEDARE SHAHUL HAMEED FATHIMA RASMY

SATTAR to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Kandy;

05. Mr. JAYAKODY ARACHCHIGE ROSHAN JAYAKODY to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Chilaw;

06. Mrs. MOHAMED ISMAIL SITHTHI HAROOSA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

07. Mrs. MOHAMED KALEEL INUL FAZLY to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

08. Mrs. MOHAMED HILMI NOOR MAZIYYA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

09. Mr. BOGAHAGODA GEDARA SHYAMAL NISHANTHA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

10. Mrs. SRI NARAYANA BRAHMANA GEDARA MADDUMA KUMARIHAMI

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
11. Mr. MUHAMMADU HANIFA MUHAMMADU SARKHAN to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
12. Rev. DULWALA RATHANASARA to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
13. Mr. GEETHIKA PRIYALAL BODIPAKSHA to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
14. Mr. RAMANAYAKALAGE GAMINI SANATH THILAN RAMANAYAKE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
15. Mr. WELIKUMBURE HANGIDIGEDARA GAMINI RANASINGHE to be

a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
16. Mr. NIHAL JAYAWARDANE to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
17. Mr. GAMAGE THILAK PUSHPA KUMARA PERERA SENANAYAKE to

be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
18. Rev. THINIYAWALA UPARATHANA to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
19. Rev. WELLAGIRIYE SUNANDA to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
20. Rev. NELUWE ANANDA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Whole Island;
21. Rev. HALWATHURE CHANDARATHANA to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
22. Rev. THILAKAUDAGAMA GNANISSARA to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
23. Rev. NELUMDANDE WIMALASARA to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Whole Island;
24. Rev. GIRAGAMA SAGARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
25. Rev. BANDARAWELA SANGANANDA to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
26. Rev. LIYANGAHAWELA RATHANAJOTHI to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
27. Rev. KUDAWILA SOMALOKA TISSA to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
28. Rev. AMUNUGAMA DEWAMITHTHA to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
29. Rev. THISNAMPALAGAMA SIRISAMBODI to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
30. Rev. ETHULGAMA UPALI to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
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31. Rev. MAKOLA DHAMMAWIMANSHA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

32. Rev. UDABOWALA ARIYADHAMMA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

33. Rev. HALMILLEWE SADHATISSA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

34. Rev. THALPATHWEWE DHAMMAJOTHI Thero to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

35. Rev. KOLAELIYE SUDASSI Thero to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

36. Rev. BADDEGAMA DHAMMAWANSA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

37. Rev. PAHALAWEWE DHAMMASIRI Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

38. Rev. UDABOWALA SUMEDHA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

39. Rev. WALDENIYE SEELARATHANA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

40. Rev. MIRISWATTE SUMANA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

41. Rev. DIMBULAGAWATHENNE BODIRATHANA Thero to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

42. Rev. KOLONNE RATHANASIRI Thero to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

43. Rev. POLWATTE DHAMMARATHANE Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

44. Rev. HETTIPOLA DHEERANANDA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

45. Rev. RAMBUKWELLE SANGANANDA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

46. Rev. DODAMGOLLEGAMA  DEWANANDA Thero to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

47. Rev. BULATHSINHALA WANARATHANA Thero to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

48. Rev. POHADDARAMULLE REWATHA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

49. Rev. DORALIYADDE BHAGINDA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

50. Rev. KANDEGAMA SUMANASARA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

51. Rev. HINDAGODA ANANDA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

52. Rev. HANTHANE DHAMMAGAWESI Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

53. Rev. KOTHMALE MALIYADEWA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

54. Rev. YAHALEGEDARA SIRISUMANA WANSA Thero to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

55. Rev. BADDEGAMA SUGATHAWANSA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

56. Rev. MAILAGASWEWE DHAMMARAKKITHA Thero to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

57. Rev. BOLAPE SUDHAMMA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

58. Rev. ATHURALIYE ANANDA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

59. Rev. WALATHARA SOBHITHA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

60. Rev. PALINDANUWARA JINASENA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

61. Rev. DAMPAHALA INDASOMA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

62. Mr. WEDAGEDARA CHANDASIRI SAMARANAYAKE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

63. Mr. DON YOTHAN ADIKARIARACHCHI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

64. Mr. MADDUMAGE YASASIRI JAYANATHA FERNANDO to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

65. Mr. RANATHUNGA MUDIYANSELAGE ABEYRATHNE BANDARA

DIWULAGALA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
66. Mr. ARUMADURA SARATHWEERA DE SILVA to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
67. Mr. WEERAKKODI SARATH PREMALAL DE SILVA to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Whole Island;
68. Mr. WEERAKKODI MANOJ KUMARA DE SILVA to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Whole Island;
69. Mr. ALAHAKOON RALALAGE KIRIBANDA ALAHAKOON to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
70. Mr. RAJANAYAKE MUDIYANSELA GEDARA KUDABANDA

RAJANAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
71. Mr. DISANAYAKE MUDIYANSELA GEDARA DINGIRIBANDA to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
72. Mrs. SUBASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE SHYAMALI SUBASINGHE to be

a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
73. Mr. GAMINI PADMASIRI KUMARASINGHE HETTIARACHCHI to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
74. Mr. GAMAGE SAMARANAYAKE NISHANTHA PRIYADARSHANE to be

a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
75. Mr. WIJESINGHE HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE NAWARATHNE

BANDARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
76. Mr. SEINUL ABDEEN MOHAMAD ASLAM to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
77. Mrs. PUSSELLAGE DONA NIROSHA NAMALI PUSSELLA to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
78. Mrs. RANANDI DEWAGE RAMYA SHANTHI RAJAPAKSHA to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
79. Mr. MERAGAL PEDI GEDARA PIYADASA GUNAWARDANE to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
80. Mr. PELAWATTAGE MUNASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Whole Island;
81. Mr. KEKUL THOTUWAGE DON PRIYANTHA to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
82. Mr. HETADAWATTE WEERASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE LOKUBANDA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
83. Mr. MEEPE GANITHAGAE RANJITH PREMACHANDRA WIDYARATHNE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
84. Mr. KURULLAN MADUWE MUDIYANSELA GEDARA LEENAS FRANCIS

JAYARATHNE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
85. Mr. SEYYAD MOHAMAD ISVI MOHAMED to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
86. Mr. BALAGE BANDULA SENARATH PERERA to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
87. Mr. MEERALEBBE IBRAHIM to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
88. Mr. GALLE ANNEKKAGE GUNADASA to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;



486 I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2012'04'20
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 20.04.2012

89. Mr. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE GUNARATHNE BANDA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

90. Mr. GAMMUNEGE DON SOORIYA BANDARA GAMMUNE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

91. Mr. SEENITHAMBI NANDAKUMAR to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

92. Mrs. JAYALATH PREMAWATHIE MARASINGHE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

93. Mr. WIMAL VIDANAPATHIRANE to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Matara;

94. Mr. ABDUL WAHAR MOHAMED NAWHAAR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

95. Mr. MOHAMED ISADEEN MOHAMAD SEINUDEEN to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

96. Mr. MOHOMMADU SAMEEM MOHOMAD RISWAN to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

97. Mr. DHARMA SRI GALKISSA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

98. Mrs. KANKANIGE alias KUDABALAGE DONA CHAMPIKA YOSHINI

CHITHRANGANIE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Kalutara;

99. Mr. MOHAMAD KASIM MOHAMED JABEER to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

100. Mrs. WIJENDRA GEDARA RATHNAWATHIE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

101. Mr. AHAMED NASEER AHMED to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

102. Mr. THAMBIPILLAI ALAGAYYA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

103. Mr. AHAMED LEBBE MOHAMED FAROOK to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

104. Mr. RATHNASIGAM LALEENDRAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

105. Mr. ABDUL GAFFOOR ZIYATH GAFFOOR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

106. Rev. KARABEWE SEEVALI Thero to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

107. Mr. AHAMED LEBBE MUKTHAR to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

108. Mr. AHAMED LEBBE NOORDEEN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

109. Mr. MOHAMED JIFFRY MOHAMED KALITH to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

110. Mr. DHARMASIRI SAMPATH LIYANAGE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

111. Mr. ILANGAKOONLAGE PRIYANTHA JUSTIN RAJARATHNE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Juducial Zone of Colombo;

112. Mr. SUNIL ROOPADEWA HATHURUSINGHE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

113. Mr. SULEIMA LEBBE MOHAMED JAZEEL to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

114. Mr. AMEER ALI MOHAMEED RIFTHI ALI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

115. Mr. ABDUL RAHEEM MUHAMMED FOUSH to be a Justice of the
Peace for the  Whole Island;

116. Mr. ABDUL RAHUMAN MUNSOOR to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

117. Mr. EDIRISINGHE ARACHCHIGE DON WATSON PREMASIRI to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

118. Mr. ADAM LEBBE MOHAMED ASLAM to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

119. Mr. GAYAN LILANTHA GUNAWARDANE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

120. Mr. ATHUKORALALAGE MAITHREERATHNE ATHUKORALE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

121. Mr. RAJAKARUNADHARA EKANAYAKE DHARMAKEERTHI

JAYAWARDANE PANDITHA MUDIYANSE RALAHAMILE SURENDRA

ANURA BANDARA MOLAGODA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

122. Mr. GODAKUMBURE GEDARA GUNASENA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

123. Mr. NAYAKORALA GEDARA SAMARAKOON BANDA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

124. Mr. MEEGASWATTE DISANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE DINGIRIBANDA

DISANAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
125. Mr. HETTI ARACHCHIGE SUJITH to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Whole Island;
126. Mr. RATHNA PATHIRANA ARACHCHIGE PIYASENA to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Whole Island;
127. Mr. WEERAPPULIGE WILBERT FERNANDO to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
128. Mr. PATTIGARDIHEWAGE CHANDRASIRI JAYANTHA SILVA to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
129. Mr. DEGIRI RANJAN MANDIS SENEWIRATHNE to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Whole Island;
130. Mr. DUNUGALGE SENAWIRATHNE to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Juducial Zone of Kandy;
131. Mrs. GABBALAGE NANDAWATHIE ALWIS to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
132. Mr. MUHAMMAD ASRUFF MUHAMMAD ASLAM to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Whole Island;
133. Mrs. SITHTHY FATHIMA SABAR to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Whole Island;
134. Mr. KORATHOTA LIYANAGE AMILA BUDDIKA to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Whole Island;
135. Mrs. SUNETHRA WADUGE (AKMEEMANA) to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
136. Mrs. WEERASOORIYA MUDIYANSELAGE INDRA PIYADASA to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
137. Rev. KOTIKAWATTE WIPASSI Thero to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
138. Rev. RAJAWELLE SUBUTHI Thero to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Whole Island;
139. Rev. YATIRAWANA DHAMMARAMA Thero to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
140. Rev. WASKADUWE WIMALA TISSA Thero to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
141. Rev. MAHAOYA ANURUDDA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
142. Mr. PANAGODAGE RAVICHANDRA LAL PATHIRANA to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Whole Island;
143. Mr. RANMUTHUGE LAKSHMAN CHANDRASIRI FERNANDO to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
144. Mr. KEKIRIGODA MUDIYANSELAGE PREMARATHNE to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Whole Island;
145. Mr. HAKMANA SUMANASIRI to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
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146. Mr. PINNERU RALALAGE ASHEN DILSHAN FERNANDO to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

147. Mr. KALUGAMPITIYA APPUHAMILAGE MAHESH KALUGAMPITIYA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
148. Rev. PUWAKDENIYE NANDASIRI Thero to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
149. Mr. SINHALA PEDIGE ANANDA LAL GUNASENA to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Whole Island;
150. Rev. PAHALAWEWE DHAMMASIRI Thero to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
151. Rev. ATHTHARAGAMA PAGHGHALANKARA Thero to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Whole Island;
152. Rev. WASKADUWE WIMALAWANSHA Thero to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
153. Mr. GALLA ANNEKKAGE GUNADASA to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
154. Rev. RATHMALANE SIRI SUMANA Thero to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
155. Rev. KAHAGALA SARANANDA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
156. Rev. GAMPOLA SUDATHTHA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
157. Rev. PULIYADDE SUDAMMA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
158. Mr. RANGODAGE GAMINI MENDIS GUNAWARDANE to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Whole Island;
159. Mr. PACKEER MOHIDEEN ABDEEN to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
160. Mr. AHAMED LEBBE RASMIN to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
161. Mr. MUHAIDEEN BAWA SAIBU LEBBE to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
162. Mr. ACHCHI MOHOMADU MOHEMMADU HANIFA to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
163. Mr. ASANAR ATHAMBAWA to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Judicial Zone of Ampara;
164. Mr. SULAIMA LEBBE AHAMED SIRAJ to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
165. Rev. LIYANWILA SUDATHTHI Thero to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
166. Rev. LIYANWILA SAMITHA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
167. Rev. MURUDDENIYE SEELARATHANA Thero to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
168. Mr. WATTE GEDARA JAYAWARDANE to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
169. Mr. UDUMA KANDU MUHAMAD MUHEES to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
170. Mr. WELLATHAMBI ANSAR to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
171. Mr. JAMOON MOHAMED NATHEER to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
172. Mr. KALANSI MAHADURAGE DHARMADASA to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
173. Mr. GALE GAMMELE GEDARA MOHAMAD RAUF MOHAMED

MASAHEER to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Kandy;

174. Mr. MOHAMED HANIFA MOHAMED IMITHIYAS to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

175. Mr. THAJUDEEN MOHOMAD IQBAL to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

176. Mr. ABDUL KARIM MOHAMMAD IFTHIKAR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

177. Mr. MOHAMAD ARIFF MOHAMAD MISRULLA LAFIR to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

178. Mr. WARAKETIYA MUDALIGE UPUL WIJESINGHE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

179. Mr. JAYASINGHE BASTIYAN ARACHCHIGE MITHRA KUMARA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

180. Mr. VITHANAGE SARATH to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

181. Mr. CHAMINDA HEWAPATHIRANA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

182. Mr. BAMMANNA ARACHCHIGE BENAT JAYASINGHE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

183. Mr. OMER LEBBE ANWER DEEN MOHAMED HILMY to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

184. Rev. DOMPE PUGHGHANANDA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

185. Mr. HANIFA RAFAIDEEN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

186. Mr. ABDUL LATHEEF MOHAMMAD IQBAL to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

187. Mr. AMEER SULTHAN SAHUL HAMEED to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

188. Mr. ISMAIL MOHAMMADU JAMEEL to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

189. Mr. SEYYADU AHAMADU ADDUL HAMIDU to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

190. Mr. BADURDEEN MOHAMMADU NALIM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

191. Mr. GARUMUNI KUMARASIRI MENDIS to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

192. Mr. ASAN MUHIDEEN MOHAMAD FARIS to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

193. Mr. SEINUL ABDEEN MOHAMMAD to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

194. Mr. MOHAMED MUSTHAFA HIRBHAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

195. Mr. VARISAI MOHAMED MOHAMED NALEEM to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

196. Mrs. MASMA BEEBI JEYFEEK to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

197. Mr. RAFEEK SARRAJ to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

198. Mr. SATHAKKU MUHAIYADEEN THASLEEM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

199. Mr. ABDUL LATHEEB MOHAMED SATHAAK to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

200. Mr. NASEER HASAN ZIYATH to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

201. Mr. MOHAMED BACKIR MOHAMED NALEEM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

202. Mr. MUHAMED MUHAIDEEN MUHAMED MUHAIJEER to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

203. Mr. ANTHONY JEGATHEES to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;
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204. Mr. SEHUTHAMBY SABRY to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

205. Mr. AHAMED KASIM MOHOMAD NIHAR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

206. Mr. ABDUL SALAM ABDUL KUDDUS to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

207. Mr. WAITHTHUL MANAB RISVI to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

208. Mr. ABDUL HAMEEDU MUSEEN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

209. Mr. MUHAMMADU SUBAIR MUHAMMADU JABARUTH to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

210. Mr. MUSA LEBBE ALI MURUSHALEEN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

211. Mr. WICKRAMANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE LIONAL WICKRAMANAYAKE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;
212. Mr. ABDUL LATHEEF ABDUL HASSAM to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
213. Mr. NUHU LEBBE MUHAMMADU ABUL BASAR to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;
214. Mr. MOHAMED SUFIYAN MOHAMED RAHMI to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;
215. Mrs. SODARANGALAGE DON CHAMILA PUSHPAKUMARI to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;
216. Mr. AHAMADU LEBBE MUHAMMADU HANEEFA to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Whole Island;
217. Mr. RASATHTHAMBI MUHAMMADU THASLEEM to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;
218. Mr. MAHAMMADU ISMAIL SAPURDEN to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
219. Mr. MOHAMMED HASSEN NAUSHARD to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
220. Mr. MUHAMMADU CASIM MUHAMMADU RAUFF to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
221. Mr. ATHAM LEBBE KIYAS ATHAM to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
222. Mr. ATHAM LEBBE RIYAS ATHAM to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
223. Mr. SOORIGE NIHAL KAMALAASIRI BATANGALA to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;
224. Rev. ANURADHAPURAYE DHAMMISSARA  Thero to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;
225. Mr. PATHUMUTHU UTHUMAN SAHIB to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;
226. Mr. POOPALAPILLAI GUNARATNAM to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
227. Mr. MEERA SAHIB MUHAMMATH SALEEM to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
228. Mr. SAUL HAMIDU MOHAMED RAMEES to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
229. Mr. MOHAMMED CASSIMGE SIYAM to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;
230. Mr. MUHAMMAD MUSTAFA ABDUL LATHEEF to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;
231. Mr. RAJATHUREI RAJAKOPAL to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
232. Mr. WARNAKULASOORIYA SOMATHILAKE to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

233. Mr. BENI RAJEEW LONAPPAN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Colombo;

234. Mr. JEEWARATHNEM JESUNESAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

235. Mrs. THARANI DAYANJALEE KUMARADASA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Avissawella;

236. Mrs. DOMMANIGE CHANDRIKA NILMINI AMARASENA

KUMARASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Avissawella;

237. Mrs. PONNAMPALAM VETHANAYAHI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

238. Mr. UDUMA LEBBE MOHOMAD THASIM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

239. Mr. DUWEGODA MUDIYANSELAGE MOHAMED RAUFF AHAMED

NUMANI to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
240. Mr. SEYED MOHAMED BUHARY MOHAMED AROOS to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Whole Island;
241. Mr. MEERA MOHIDEEN SARAFF MOHIDEEN to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
242. Rev. GAMPOLA SUDATHTHA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
243. Mr. N. W. WIJENAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
244. Mr. MOHAMED ALIYAR THAJAHAN to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
245. Mr. KAMSA MOHAMED MUZAMMIL HUZAIN to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
246. Mr. AHMED MOHAMED MAHROOF to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
247. Mr. UMARUKATHA MOHAMED ISHARK to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
248. Mr. N. H. D. W. R. R. W. M. SUNIL MULLEGAMA to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Whole Island;
249. Mrs. WATHULIYADDE GEDARA SUBHADRA DAMAYANTHI KUMARI

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
250. Mr. RAKITHA DILUSHA BANDARA WELIKUMBURA to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
251. Mr. UMERDEEN SAHATHOONAL SAMEEM to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
252. Mr. KATHIRAVEL THEVARAJAH to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
253. Mr. MUHUSEEN RAISUDEEN to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
254. Mr. NAHOOR PICHCHAI SUHAIB ROOMI to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;
255. Mr. MUHAMADU USAIL MUHAMADU NALEEFER to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Vavniya;
256. Mr. ABDUL CADER JESEEM to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
257. Mr. SEHU JAMALULLA THIYARIS to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Whole Island;
258. Mr. ABDUL FAREED MOHAMED FARSATH to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;
259. Mr. HAYATHU MOHAMED HALALDEEN to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
260. Mr. PAKKIYARASA KUWERATHAN to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Whole Island;
261. Mr. HEMANTHA PERUSINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
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262. Mrs. SAMARASINGHE ARACHCHILLAGE CHAMANI SAMARASINGHE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;
263. Mr. URU LIYANAGE DON DHARMASIRI GUNASINGHE to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
264. Mr. ABDUL GAFOOR MOHOMMATH MUBARAQ to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Whole Island;
265. Mr. LOKUPATHIRAGE HARISCHANDRA WASANTHA KUMARA

LOKUPATHIRAGE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Panadura;

266. Mr. AHAMADU LEBBE MUHAMMADU RISVIQ to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

267. Mr. IBDRALEBBE MUHAMMAD RAFIU to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

268. Mr. Ameedu Lebbe Muhammad Saththar to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

269. Mr. Alahapperuma Kapugamage Karunadasa to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

270. Mr. NAKULUGAMUWA GAMAGE VICTOR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

271. Mr. RANASIN KALUMEDIRIYAGE GUNADASA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

272. Mr. UDUGAMA SOORIGE GUNADASA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

273. Mr. WADUDENIYA GAMACHCHIGE SIRISENA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

274. Mr. MADDUMAGE SOMASIRI to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Matara;

275. Mr. VICTOR JAYASEKARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Matara;

276. Mr. MUTHUMANI LALITH RANJAN JAYALAL DE SILVA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

277. Rev. WELLEWE CHANDANANDA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

278. Mrs. MADURAPPULIGE VINITHA INDRANI PERERA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;

279. Mr. PALIHAWADANAGE METHTHANANDA DHARMARATHNE to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

280. Mr. HETTI ARACHCHIGE SHYAM PRADEEP PRIYANKARA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

281. Mr. MORAGODA LIYANAGE SUDATH PRIYANTHA GUNATHILAKE to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

282. Mr. SAMARAKOON RALALAGE SIRIPALA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;

283. Mr. HEWA DEWAGE PUSHPAKUMAR GUNAWARDANE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

284. Mr. KORALAGAMA ARACHCHIGE UPALI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

285. Mrs. BULATHGE CHANDIMA DAMAYANTHI BULATHGE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

286. Mrs. AMARASINGHE ARACHCHIGE SAMILA ERANTHI AMARASINGHE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
287. Mrs. MADAWALA LIYADDAGE DHARMAKANTHI to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;
288. Mr. SAMARAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE WIRAJ KUMARA SAMARAWEERA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
289. Mr. SRIYANGANIIE SAMANTHIKA KULATHUNGA to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
290. Mr. MUTHUNAYAKE THILAKARATHNE to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;

291. Mr. DELPA CHITHRAGE SAMAN PRIYA DE SILVA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

292. Mrs. HEWA HEENPALLAGE SHAKILA GAYANI GHANARATHNE to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

293. Mr. KARIYAWASAM HEWA MANAGE ASHOKA DEEPANANDA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

294. Mrs. SOMA DE SILVA GAMMUDUWATTA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Galle;

295. Mr. UDUWAKA HEWAGE SUNIL WIJESINGHE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

296. Mr. DAHAMJITH EDIRISINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

297. Mrs. INDRAWATHIE EDIRIMANNA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

298. Mr. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE SUGATH SAMARAWEERA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

299. Mr. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE CHANDRASIRI RATHNAYAKE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
300. Mr. SOORIYA ARACHCHIGE NATH INDIKA to be a Justice of the

Peace for the Whole Island;
301. Mr. JANAKA KUMARA ADHIKARI HETTIARACHCHI to be a Justice

of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
302. Mr. KANDE VIDANALAGE SAMAN WIJAYA BANDARA to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;
303. Mr. DUNUMALE MUDIYANSELAGE PANDITHA RALALAGE THUSITHA

BANDARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Kegalle;

304. Mr. KURUKOSGAHAMULA GEDARA SAMANTH to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

305. Mr. ILUKTHENNA ARACHCHILAGE JANAKA CHANDANA KUMARA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

306. Mr. ABDUL KAPOOR ABDUL MUNAF to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

307. Mrs. DULWALA RALALAGE SRIYANI MANGALIKA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

308. Mrs. RASNAK GEDARA MUDITHA KUMARI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Kegalle;

309. Mr. DIPPITAGE WIRANJANA KUMARA DIPPITA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

310. Mr. WANASINGHE JAYAKODIGE SARATH SENAWIRATHNE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

311. Mr. PATTIYAWATTE GEDARA KARUNARATHNE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

312. Mr. RANKOTH PEDI GEDARA AJITH SUBASINGHE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

313. Mr. WEERAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE ASELA WEERAKOON to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

314. Mr. DUGGANNA RALAHAMILAGE WALAWWE NALINDA BANDARA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
315. Mr. PALLEKUMBURE WICKRAMASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE KITHSIRI

KUMARA WICKRAMASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

316. Mr. BUHARI MOHAMED ZAROOK to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

317. Mr. MUHAMMADU HANIFA UBAIDULLA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

318. Mr. KATHALUWA GAMAGE GHANAPALA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;
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319. Mr. WIJEMUNI RUWAN PRABHODA DE SILVA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Balapitiya;

320. Mr. HETHUMANI SHIRAN INDIKA MENDIS to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

321. Mr. THIRIMADURA NIHAL MENDIS to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

322. Rev. RATHGAMA SIRI SUDHAMMA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Chilaw;

323. Mr. KACHCHAKADUGE DILKY THUSHARA FERNANDO to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Chilaw;

324. Mr. RANASINGHE MUDALIGE RATHNASIRI RANASINGHE  to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Chilaw;

325. Mr. PHILIP DILAN LAKSIRI FERNANDO PULLAI to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Chilaw;

326. Mr. KARUNARATHNE RAJAPAKSHA MUDIYANSELAGE ARUNA

BANDARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Chillaw;

327. Mr. DISANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE THILAKASIRI DISANAYAKE to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Chilaw;

328. Mr. WARNAKULASOORIYAGE MERIL PERERA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

329. Mr. DON PEDURU LIYANARACHCHIGE FRANK EDWERD to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Chilaw;

330. Mr. DON IVON JAYASOORIYA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Chilaw;

331. Mrs. NANAYAKKARA WARNAKULA PATABENDIGE NISHANI

YUPREMIYA PRITHIKA PERERA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

332. Mr. KULASEKARA GANIGAMA APPPUHAMILAGE DINESH

PUSHPAKUMARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Negombo;

333. Mr. HETTIWANSHA PATHIRANAGE RANJITH SENARATHNE

ALAGALLA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
334. Mr. PATHIRAJA APPUHAMILAGE KRISHANTHA to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;
335. Mr. NEGIRIKANDALAGE WIMAL PIYARATHNE to be a Justice of

the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;
336. Rev. PANADURE DHAMMARATHANA to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;
337. Mr. NAYAKARATHNE MUDIYANSELAGE INDIKA PRIYANTHA

KUMARA NAYAKARATHNE to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

338. Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE KULASENA JAYAKODY to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

339. Mrs. MUHANDIRAMGE BUDDIMA GOMEZ to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

340. Mr. SAMAN CHANDRASIRI LIYANAGE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

341. Mr. WIJESINGHE ARACHCHIGE CHANDRARATHNE HEMAKUMARA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

342. Mr. RANTHILAKE MUDIYANSELAGE KUDABANDA SUMANARATHNE

ALAWATHUGODA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Kandy;

343. Mr. MADANAKONDA ARACHCHIRALALAGE DON CLARENCE MILROY

NIROSHAN ARSAKULARATHNE to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

344. Mr. ADAMBAWA ASFER to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

345. Mr. U. L. BANDUSENA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

346. Mr. ABDUL WAHAB MOHOMAD JESWAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

347. Mr. L. DAVID SILVA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

348. Mr. ABDUL CADER MAWROOF JESMIN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

349. Mr. SUBRAMANIUM SIVENDRAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

350. Mrs. ISHANTHIE SHARMILA DIAS ABEYGUNAWARDANE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

351. Mr. ABDUL HAQ MOHAMED AROOS to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

352. Mr. ABDUL AYPPAR MOHAMADU RISAD to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

353. Mr. MUHAMMED BUHARY MOHAMMED THABITH to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

354. Mr. ABDUL MANAAF MOHAMED ANIS to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

355. Mr. PATHIRAJAGE TONY KARUNANAYAKE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

356. Mr. MOHAMED GHOUSE MOHAMED SHAHUL HAMEED to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

357. Mrs. ATHAUDA MUDIYANSELAGE WASANTHI VINODANI ATHAUDA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
358. Mr. MATHALAGE RANJITH DIAS to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Whole Island;
359. Mrs. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE INDUNIL JANAKA SRIMALI

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Anuradhapura;

360. Mr. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE CHAMINDA NALAKA

SALIYARATHNE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Anuradhapura;

361. Mr. SENARATH EKANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE GAMAGEDARA

KUDABANDARA ALAGODA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

362. Mr. ADIKARI WEERAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE SARATH KUMARA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

363. Mr. KAPUWAGE JINADASA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

364. Mr. TIKIRI BANDA MUDIYANSELAGE PRASANNA THILAKARATHNE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Anuradhapura;

365. Mr. PATHIRANAGE UPASENA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

366. Mr. WASALA MUDIYANSELAGE GHANATHILAKE BANDARA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

367. Mr. MALGAHAGAMAGE YATALA THISSA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

368. Mr. Wickrama Arachchige Sirisena to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

369. Mr. H. P. Sisirawansha to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

370. Mr. TIKIRI BANDA MUDIYANSELAGE PRASANNA THILAKARATHNE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Anuradhapura;

371. Mr. MOHAMMAD GNANI MOHAMMAD ALLI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;
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372. Mr. DEVENDRA ACHARIGE ANURA PUSHPA KUMARA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

373. Mr. APONSU HEWAGE NIHAL CHANDRASIRI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

374. Mr. ABOOBACKAR JAHUFER to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

375. Mr. MOHAMED FALULOON ABDUL AZEEZ to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

376. Mrs. PATHIRAJA MUDALIGE THILAKA KALYANI to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

377. Mrs. MALA KANTHI ABEYGUNAWARDANE WIJESINGHE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

378. Mrs. PEDURU ARACHCHIGE KANTHI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

379. Mr. KUMARASINGHE KATUNAYAKE APPUHAMILAGE LALITH

CHANDRASIRI to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Colombo;

380. Mr. ISMA LEBBE MOHAMED THAWFEEK to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

381. Mr. SEINUL ABDEEN MUHAMMAD NAYEEM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

382. Mr. SHANMUGANATHAN SIVAPAKKIAM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

383. Mr. NAINA MUHAMMADU MUHAMMED AKRAM to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

384. Mr. PACKEER MOHIDEEN MOHAMED ZAMEEM to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

385. Mr. MUHAMMADU LABUDDEEN MUHAMMADU MUDARRIS to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

386. Mr. AHAMED LEBBE FALEEL to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Ampara;

387. Mr. SANMUGAM JEEWANATHAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

388. Mr. ABDUL MUTHALIF ABDUL NIZAR to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

389. Mr. ADAM LEBBE MOHAMAD RIYAS to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

390. Mr. ABDUL MASHUR ASLAM SAJA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

391. Mr. RAJAPAKSHA PATHIRANNALAGE DON LAL JAYASIRI to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

392. Mrs. DULWALA GEDARA ASHOKA MAGRET KUMARI DULWALA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

393. Mr. DASANAYAKE PATHIRANNEHELAGE PIYADASA DASANAYAKE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
394. Mr. SAHUL HAMEED JASEER ARFATH to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
395. Mr. PERIYAPPERUMA ARACHCHIGE SUGATHADASA ALWIS to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
396. Mr. SULAIMA LEBBE AZEEZ to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;
397. Mr. REINUL MUMTHAS SAROOK to be a Justice of the Peace for

the Whole Island;
398. Mr. ISMA LEBBE SABRI to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Judicial Zone of Ampara;

399. Mr. UDUMA LEBBE MUHAMMADU ABDUL CADER to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

400. Mr. MOHOMED JEMIL RIZWAAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

401. Mr. NAGALINGAM PRASHANTHAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

402. Mr. BUHARY MUHAJIREEN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

403. Mr. KARUNAMUNI PIYAL DE SILVA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

404. Mr. ADIKARI MUDIYANSELAGE GAMINI ADIKARAM to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

405. Mr. MUHAMMADAL ABDUL AZEEZ to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

406. Mr. MOHOMAD SARIFDIN SADATH ALI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

407. Mr. HENDADURA DADISON ZOYSA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

408. Mrs. PUSHPALATHA LOGANATHAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

409. Mr. ABDUL CAREEM RIYAS to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

410. Mr. MOHAMED CASSIM MOHAMED CAMERUR RILA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

411. Mr. MOHOMAD ARIF IMITIYAS AHAMED to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

412. Mr. MOHOMAD ARIF MOHAMED SHEIN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

413. Mr. SULEIMA LEBBE HAFEEL to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

414. Mr. ANSARDEEN MOHAMED THAJOOR to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

415. Mr. MOHAMMED MUHAIDEEN MOHAMMED THAHEER to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

416. Mr. SEYED MOHAMED MOHAMED IRFAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

417. Mr. MUHAMMADU RASK MUHAMMADU FARSAN to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

418. Mr. MOHAMED IBRAHIM ABDUL KAIYOOM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

419. Mr. MEERA LEBBE MUHAMMADU YOOSUFF to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

420. Mr. NOORDEEN MUHAMMADU THAHIR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

421. Mr. ABDUL RAHEEM RASAKKU to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

422. Mr. ATHAM LEBBE PEER MOHAMED to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

423. Mr. WELITHARAGE WASANTHA LAKSHMAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

424. Mrs. SEPALA MUDIYANSELAGE SUJEEWA KUMARI  to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

425. Mrs. ANGODA RANKOTH PIHILIANGE KANTHI SRIYALATHA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
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426. Mr. SINHALA PEDI GEDARA STANLEY SENEWIRATHNE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

427. Mr. KANDE GAMARALALAGE CHANDRIKA MALKANTHI

WEERASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
428. Mr. NIHAL DARSHANA BOGAHAGE to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
429. Mrs. RANASINGHAGE DONA INDRANI KUSUMALATHA to be a

Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
430. Mr. MUDALIHAMIGE RATHNAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace

for the Whole Island;
431. Mr. DON NIHAL WICKRAMA to be a Justice of the Peace for the

Whole Island;

No. 367  of  2012

I, Rauff Hakeem, Minister of Justice, by virtue of the powers vested in me by Section 45(3) of the Judicature Act, No. 02 of 1978 do here
by appoint the following Attorneys-at-Law as Justices of the Peace and unofficial Magistrates for the respective Judicial Zones.

RAUFF HAKEEM,
Minister of Justice.

Ministry of Justice,
Colombo 12,
28th day of March, 2012.

Serial Name Address Judicial
No. Zone

01 Mrs. SUNETHRA SENEVIRATHNE, No. 28A, Dewala Lane, Pagoda, Nugegoda Kaduwela
Attorney-at-Law

02 Mr. FELICIAN FERNANDOPULLE, No. 01, Main Street, Negombo Negombo
Attorney-at-Law

03 Mr. ANANDA JAYANTHA ABEYWICKRAMA, Danwalawatta, Nayapamula, Baddegama Baddegama
Attorney-at-Law

04 Mrs. PATHIRENNEHELAGE LAKMEE SITHARA No. 59/6, Maduwe Gedara, Nittambuwa Attanagalla
MEEMANA, Attorney-at-Law

05 Mrs. DE SILVA MANIMEL WADU DILINI No. 187/7A, S. H. Dahanayaka Mawatha, Galle
SAMANMALI DAYARATHNA, Galle
Attorney-at-Law

06 Mr. DUMINDA WEERASINGHE RAJAPAKSHA, No. 16/3B, Sri Jinananda Mawatha, Galle
Attorney-at-Law Keradugoda, Ahangama

07 Mr. MANIMELWADU ARUNA PRADEEP No. 292/1, Main Street, Ambalangoda Balapitiya
Attorney-at-Law

08 Mr. VISUDHAKUMAR PRIYANKARA DAMBURA Thotupolawatta, Kimbi Ela, Baddegama Baddegama
LIYANAGE, Attorney-at-Law

09 Mr. LEELARATHNA VITHANARACHCHI, Ihalagoda, Ella, Elpitiya Elpitiya
Attorney-at-Law

10 Mr. NALEEN DHARMABANDU IMBULAGODA, No. 68, Ilimba Junction, Horana Horana
Attorney-at-Law

11 Mr. LAKSHMAN SARATH WEERAKKODY, No. 1A, Maitipe Second Lane, Galle
Attorney-at-Law Ambalanwatta, Galle

12 Mr. HATHARASINGHE PRASANNA GUNASIRI Bowala Road, Walasmulla Walasmulla
SATHARASINGHE, Attorney-at-Law

13 Mrs. MATARA ARACHCHIGE SRIYANI DHAMMIKA “Sri Pathi”, Court Road, New Town, Embilipitiya
WICKRAMARATHNA, Attorney-at-Law Embilipitiya

432. Mr. RANAWEERA BANDARA RAMBUKWELLE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island,

as the Justices of the Peace,

RAUFF HAKEEM,
Minister of Justice.

Ministry of Justice,
Colombo 12,
28th March, 2012.

04-478
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14 Mrs. GANEGODA APPUHAMILAGE DONA No. 53/27, 3rd Lane, Kanaththa Road, Colombo
DANUMATHIKA PRIYANTHI GANEGODA, Thalapathpitiya, Nugegoda
Attorney-at-Law

15 Mrs. SHIROMI PRABODHIKA NIYAGAMA, No. 5/3, “Thejana Villa”, Oruthota, Gomagoda Theldeniya
Attorney-at-Law

16. Mr. SULEIMA LEBBE ABDUL RASHEED No. 92, R. D. S. Mawatha, Addalachchennai - 03 Akkareipathtu
Attorney-at-Law

17. Mr. VIDURA PATHIRATHANA MANCHANAYAKA, No. 45/46, Hikgahawatta Mawatha, Papiliyana Nugegoda
Attorney-at-Law

18. Mrs. KONAGE KORALAGE DINESHKA Terance Perera Mawatha, Higurala, Puwakpitiya Avissawella
Sugandani Konage,
Attorney-at-Law

04-588

Serial Name Address Judicial
No. Zone

Revenue and Expenditure Returns
THE  REPORT

OF  THE  AUDITOR

Ms. Y. Shirani de Silva
C/o Kreston MNS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
No. 50/2, Sir James Peiris Mawatha,
Colombo 2.

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR
TO THE COUNCIL OF THE INSTITUTE
OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF SRI LANKA

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of THE
INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF SRI
LANKA, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st December
2011 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the
Balance Sheets of F.B. Lander Prize Fund and Cyril E. Begbie
Memorial Prize Fund, and the related Income Statements, and
Statement of Changes in Funds and Cash Flow Statement of the
Institute for the year then ended, and a Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies and other explanatory Notes, as exhibited on
pages 51 to 64.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these Financial Statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial
Statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance
with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those Standards require that I
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements.

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall Financial Statement presentation.

I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
my audit. I, therefore, believe that my audit provides a reasonable
basis for my opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, so far as appears from my examination, the Institute
maintained proper accounting records for the year ended 31st
December 2011 for its activities, F.B. Lander Prize Fund and Cyril
E. Begbie Memorial Prize Fund and the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Institute, F.B. Lander
Prize Fund and Cyril E. Begbie Memorial Prize Fund as at 31st
December 2011 and the results of their operations and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards.

Ms. Y. SHIRANI DE SILVA,
Chartered Accountant,
Colombo,
30th March 2012.
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INCOME  STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER

Revenue from students and members’ activities
Direct expenditure on students & members’ activities
Contribution before employee costs and overheads

Other income
Other operating income
Operating income

Overhead expenses
Employee costs
Communication expenses
Maintenance of premises
Audit fees
Depreciation and amortisation
Financial assistance to students
Other expenses

Net operating income

Government grant
Interest income
Surplus transferred to accumulated fund

Colombo 7,
30th March 2012.

Notes

2
2
2

3

4

5

8.2

6

7

2011
Rs. ‘000

463,753
(221,823)

241,930

5,319
247,249

(112,635)
(13,144)
(21,004)

(120)
(10,520)
(3,228)

(11,632)
(172,283)

74,966

350
30,322

105,638

2010
Rs. ‘000

383,424
(171,140)

212,284

2,769
215,053

(108,800)
(10,227)
(19,826)

(123)
(7,721)
(2,757)
(5,480)

(154,934)
60,119

350
32,111
92,580

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant & equipment
Capital work-in-progress - buildings
Educational material
Intangible assets
Work in progress - software development

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Receivables
Deposits, prepayments & advances
Short-term investments
Balance at bank
Cash in hand

TOTAL ASSETS

2011
Rs. ‘000

71,893
137,232

2,973
10,465
1,534

224,097

16,368
29,488
2,910

453,250
18,025

101
520,142
744,239

2010
Rs. ‘000

53,316
20,053
6,391
8,512
1,134

89,406

17,287
27,888
3,841

460,475
5,398

88
514,977
604,383

Notes

8
9
10
11
12

13
14

15

The accounting policies and notes on pages 51 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FUNDS & LIABILITIES
ACCUMULATED FUND & RESERVES
Accumulated fund
Capital reserve

SPECIFIC INTERNAL FUNDS
Faculty of Taxation fund
Faculty of Auditing fund
Needy students scholarship fund
Merit scholarship funds
Prize funds
Income balances - scholarships and prize funds
Publications fund
Best Annual Report Competition fund
Urgent Issues Task Force fund

GRANTS
World Bank grant - IRQUE project
Other grants

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for retiring gratuity

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Receipts in advance
Bank overdraft

TOTAL FUNDS & LIABILITIES

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25
26

27

28
29

466,769
24,000

490,769

398
384

8,000
6,203
1,336
3,726

249
912
272

21,480

21,279
-

21,279

17,626

47,249
122,115

23,721
193,085
744,239

361,131
24,000

385,131

374
360

7,946
6,467
1,336
5,170

234
878
242

23,007

29,047
15

29,062

17,210

33,484
99,267
17,222

149,973
604,383

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER  (Contd.)

The Accounting Policies and notes on pages 51 to 64 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

K.C. DINUSHINI, ARUNA ALWIS,
Financial Accountant. Secretary / Chief Executive Officer.

For and on behalf of the Council.

SUJEEWA RAJAPAKSE, ARJUNA HERATH,
President. Vice-President.

Colombo 7,
30th March 2012.

STATEMENT  OF  CHANGES IN
FUNDS  AND  RESERVES

Specific
Internal Funds

Rs’.000

23,884

(877)

-

23,007

Accumulated
Fund

Rs’.000

268,551

-

92,580

361,131

Capital
Reserve
Rs’.000

24,000

-

-

24,000

Total
Rs’.000

316,435

(877)

92,580

408,138

Balance as at 01st January, 2010

(Decrease) / Increase in specific internal funds

Surplus of income over expenditure for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2010

Notes 2011
Rs. ‘000

2010
Rs. ‘000
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(Decrease) / Increase in specific internal funds

Surplus of income over expenditure for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2011

-

105,638

466,769

-

-

24,000

(1,527)

-

21,480

(1,527)

105,638

512,249

STATEMENT  OF  CHANGES IN
FUNDS  AND  RESERVES  (Contd.)

Accumulated
Fund

Rs’.000

Capital
Reserve
Rs’.000

Specific
Internal Funds

Rs’.000

Total
Rs’.000

Capital reserve represents funds reserved for upgrading of buildings.

The accounting policies and notes on pages 51 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Colombo 7,
30th March 2012.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER

Cash flows from operating activities
Excess of income over expenditure
Adjustment for:
Depreciation on property, plant & equipment including
amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of educational materials
Government grant
Amortisation of grants
Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards Monitoring Board -
(SLAASMB) grant
Provision for retiring gratuity
Interest income
(Profit) / Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment
Assets written off
Operating surplus before working capital changes

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in deposits & prepayments
Increase / (Decrease) in accounts payable
Increase / (Decrease) in receipts in advance

Retiring gratuity paid
Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant & equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
(Increase) / Decrease in capital work-in-progress
(Increase) / Decrease in work-in-progress - software development
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant & equipment
Interest received

CASH  FLOW  STATEMENT

Note

8.2

10

25

26
27
7
3
6

13
14

28
29

27

8,10
11
9
12

2011
Rs. ‘000

105,638

14,940

4,224
(350)

(7,768)

(2,500)
2,997

(30,322)
(107)

-
86,752

919
(1,600)

931
13,765
22,848

123,615
(2,581)

121,034

(31,243)
(5,060)

(117,179)
(400)

134
30,322

2010
Rs. ‘000

92,580

12,679

5,248
(350)

(8,468)

(2,500)
801

(32,111)
(24)
717

68,572

(11,585)
(4,739)

3,834
1,728

26,250
84,060
(3,046)
81,014

(5,512)
(10,381)
(20,053)

(1,134)
30

32,111
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Net cash (outflow) / inflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Government, SLAASMB & other grants received
Net receipts / (payments) of specific internal funds
Net cash inflow from financing activities
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents at 1 January (Note A)
Cash & cash equivalents at 31 December

Note A - Cash & cash equivalents at 31 December
Short-term investments
Balances at bank and cash in hand
Bank overdraft

(123,426)

2,835
(1,527)

1,308
(1,084)

448,739
447,655

453,250
18,126

(23,721)
447,655

(4,939)

4,264
(877)
3,387

79,462
369,277
448,739

460,475
5,486

(17,222)
448,739

Note 2011
Rs. ‘000

2010
Rs. ‘000

CASH  FLOW  STATEMENT (Contd.)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 General Policies

1.1.1 Reporting entity
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (hereafter referred to as the “Institute”) was incorporated by Act of
Parliament No. 23 of 1959, and is situated at 30A, Malalasekera Mawatha, Colombo 7.

1.1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations
-The Institute is the sole authority for promulgating accounting and auditing standards in Sri Lanka. The principal activities of
the Institute are:
-Promulgating accounting and auditing standards
-Technical interpretation of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards via Urgent Issues Task Force (UITF)
-Adoption and implementation of code of ethics and best practice
-Conduct of technical awareness campaigns in the form of seminars, workshops and events to ensure continuous professional
development of Institute members
-Enrolment of students and conducting of examinations
-Regulation and supervision of student education and training
-Making representation to government and other relevant authorities on matters of public interest relating to business community.

1.1.3 Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance
The financial statements comprise the balance sheet, income statement, statements of changes in funds and reserves, cash
flow statement and notes to the financial statements. These statements have been prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards (SLAS) issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. The accounting policies
adopted are consistent with those used in the previous financial year.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Council on 30th March 2012.

(b) Basis of Measurement
Financial Statements have been prepared on historical costs basis and do not take into account changes in money values,
except where it is stated. Cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The Accounting Policies and notes on pages 51 to 64 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(c) Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the institute’s functional and presentation currency.

Figures and phrases relating to the previous year have been restated where necessary, to conform to the current year’s
presentation.

(d) Use of Estimates and Judgements
The preparation and presentation of financial statements in conformity with SLASs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income & expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates and judgemental decisions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

1.2 Assets and the bases of their valuation

1.2.1 Property, plant and equipment

(a) Recognition and Measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation or impairment losses.

(b) Cost
The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure incurred for the purpose of acquiring, extending or improving assets of a permanent nature in order
to carry on or increase the earning capacity of the Institute has been treated as capital expenditure.

(c) Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to the Income Statement on the written down values at the following rates per annum in order to
write off the cost of such assets over their estimated useful lives, except in the case of buildings on leasehold land, head
office refurbishment and computer software.

Generator 20%
Furniture and Equipment 10%
Air-Conditioning Equipment 20%
Audio Visual Equipment 10%
Motor Vehicles 20%
Computers 20%
Canteen Equipment 10%
Head Office Refurbishment 10%

Buildings on Leasehold Land have been depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their estimated useful lives.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as
held for sale and the date that the asset is de-recognised.

The residual values of the assets are re-assessed annually.

An item of property, plant & equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the assets is included in the Income Statement in the year the asset is de-
recognised.

1.2.2. Educational material - IRQUE Project
Assets acquired under this project are depreciated on the following bases:

(a) Cost of library books are written off on straight-line method over a period of 3 years.
(b) Cost of work based learning program software is written off on straight-line method over a period of 4 years.
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(c) Cost of Multimedia English Learning Center (MELC) software is written off on straight-line method over a period of 4
years.

(d) Syllabus development cost is written off on straight-line method over a period of 3 years.

1.2.3 Intangible Assets
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
entity and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 37 – Intangible
Assets. Accordingly, these assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Computer software is amortised over a period of 5 years on straight-line method.

1.2.4 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. The cost of inventories is based on
weighted average cost. The cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing
location and condition.

Other inventory items are stated at the lower of cost and net replacement cost.

1.2.5 Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less any allowance for any uncollectible amounts. An estimate
for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.

1.2.6 Short Term Investments

(a) Investments in Government Securities
Investments in treasury bills, treasury bonds and repurchase agreements are stated at cost plus accrued interest up to the
year end.

(b) Investments in Fixed Deposits
Investments in fixed deposits are stated at cost plus accrued interest up to the year end.

1.2.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits at bank.

Bank overdraft is included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows, which
has been prepared using the ‘indirect method’.

3. LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the financial statements and adequate provisions are made for

liabilities which are known to exist but the amount of which cannot be determined accurately.

Obligations payable on demand or within one year of the balance sheet date are treated as current liabilities in the balance sheet.
Liabilities payable after one year from the balance sheet date are treated as non-current liabilities in the balance sheet.

1.3.1 Accounting for Grants
Grants that compensate the Institute for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in the income statement in the same period
in which the expenses are recognised. Grants that compensate the Institute for the cost of an asset are recognised in the income
statement on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset.

1.3.2 Employee Benefits

(a) Provision for Retiring Gratuity
The Institute has adopted the benefit plan as required under the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983 for all eligible
employees. The benefit plan is unfunded. Provision for gratuity is made by the Institute taking account of the recommendation
of an independent qualified actuaries firm, Messrs Actuarial & Management Consultants (Private) Limited. The actuarial
valuation was done for the first time in 2010.
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Defined benefit plans define an amount of benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date together with adjustments for unrecognised past service cost. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by the Institute using the projected unit credit method prescribed in Sri Lanka Accounting
Standard 16; Employee Benefits. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash flows using the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds or government bonds that are denominated
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
pension liability. In the absence of such high-quality long-term corporate bonds or government bonds, the long term
discount rate is determined by examining the market rate of interest on short-term corporate bonds and the anticipated long-
term rate of inflation.

Gains and losses arising from experience, adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
income statement in the period in which they arise. Past service costs are recognised immediately in income statement,
unless the changes to the plan are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specific period of time (the vesting
period). In this case, the past service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

The key assumptions used by Messrs Actuarial & Management Consultants (Private) Limited include the following:

• Rate of Interest 10% per annum
• Rate of Salary increase 5% - 10%
• Retirement Age 55 years
• The Institute will continue as a going concern

(b) Defined Contribution Plans
Obligations for contributions to a defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement as
incurred.

The Institute contributes a sum not less than 15% and 3% of the gross emoluments of employees to Employees’ Provident
Fund (EPF) and to the Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF) respectively.

1.3.3 Taxation
The profits and income of the Institute other than profits and income from dividends or interest is exempt from income tax under
Section 7(b) (ii) of the Inland Revenu Act, No. 10 of 2006.

1.3.4 Deferred Taxation
Provision has not been made for deferred tax, as profits and income of the Institute other than profits and income from dividends
or interest is exempt from income tax under Section 7(b) (ii) of the Inland Revenue Act, No. 10 of 2006.

1.3.5 Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
All material capital commitments and contingent liabilities are considered and necessary adjustments or disclosures are made in
the financial statements.

1.4 INCOME STATEMENT

1.4.1 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Institute and that it can be reliably
measured.

(a) Enrolment fees from members and students are recognised as revenue on receipt. The subscription year runs 1 January to
31st December. Only those membership fees and subscription payments that are attributable to the current financial year
are recognised as revenue. Fees and subscription payments that relate to future periods are shown in the balance sheet as
subscriptions and fees received in advance under current liabilities.

(b) Fees on examinations, seminars, courses, and other educational and members’ activities are recognised as revenue on
completion of such activity.

(c) Interest income is recognised on accrual basis.
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(d) Revenue from grants is recognised when control of the contribution or right to receive the contribution is confirmed.

(e) Sponsorship of member related activities is recognised on receipt.

(f) Other income is recognised on accrual basis.

1.4.2 Expenditure

(a) Expenses are recognised in the income statement on the basis of direct association between the cost incurred and the earning
of specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the Institute and in maintaining the capital assets in
a state of efficiency has been charged to revenue in arriving at the surplus for the year.

(b) Expenditure on examinations, seminars, courses, and other educational and members’ activities is recognised in the income
statement on completion of such activity.

1.5 Comparative information
Where necessary, comparative figures have been re-arranged to conform with the current year’s presentation. Branch expenditures
amounting to Rs.4.7mn which had been classified under direct expenses of registration, education, training, library, and marketing
divisions have been re-classified and shown under employee costs and communication expenses.

1.6 Events after the balance sheet date
The materiality of events occurring after the Balance Sheet date has been considered and appropriate adjustments, wherever
necessary, have been made in the accounts.

NOTE 2 - REVENUE FROM & EXPENDITURE ON STUDENTS’ AND MEMBERS’ ACTIVITIES (EXCLUDING EMPLOYEE
COST)

Examinations
Registration, Education, Training,
Library & Marketing
IT training & language centre
Members’ activities
Business school
Taxation faculty
CPD secretariat
Technical research

Direct
Income
Rs.’000

141,933
124,031

30,375
87,753
52,804

5,585
8,132

13,140
463,753

2011
(Direct

Expenses)
Rs.’000

(54,723)
(50,492)

(15,393)
(49,524)
(32,704)
(3,115)
(5,789)

(10,083)
(221,823)

Contribution
Rs.’000

87,210
73,539

14,982
38,229
20,100

2,470
2,343
3,057

241,930

Direct
Income
Rs.’000

127,521
124,152

20,797
62,275
28,117

6,137
9,645
4,780

383,424

2010
(Direct

Expenses)
Rs.’000
(45,942)
(57,323)

(5,685)
(37,482)
(11,645)
(2,679)
(6,501)
(3,883)

(171,140)

Contribution
Rs.’000

81,579
66,829

15,112
24,793
16,472
3,458
3,144

897
212,284

NOTE 3 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Profit on sale of diaries
Profit on sale of publications
Hire of auditorium & lecture halls
Profit on disposal of property, plant & equipment
Miscellaneous income

NOTE 4 - EMPLOYEE COSTS

Defined contribution plan costs
Defined benefit plan costs

2011
Rs.’000

1,052
297
801
107

3,062
5,319

11,199
2,997

2010
Rs.’000

179
604
337
24

1,625
2,769

10,904
801
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94,304
4,135

112,635

120

8,631
9,914
1,907

552
21,004

93,934
3,161

108,800

122

8,713
7,096
3,674

343
19,826

Salaries and wages
Staff development and welfare

No. of employees as at year end

NOTE 5 - MAINTENANCE OF PREMISES

Utility payments
Building maintenance cost
Equipment maintenance cost
Others

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

NOTE 6 - OTHER EXPENSES

Motor vehicle running expenses
Bank charges and debit tax
Professional fees
Legal expenses
General expenses
Subscription to Employers’ Federation of Ceylon
50th Anniversary expenses
Re-location to AAT & rental charges
Fixed assets written off

NOTE 7 - INTEREST INCOME

Gross Interest Income
Fixed deposits
Treasury bills
Repos

WHT deduction
Notional tax - TBs & Repos

Net interest income

Staff loan interest income
Transfers to funds

449
1,007
1,927

332
1,992

199
-

5,726
-

11,632

24,022
1,846
8,236

34,104

(1,483)
(1,587)
31,034

772
(1,484)
30,322

420
1,105
1,137

391
1,383

189
138

-
717

5,480

2,621
28,557

6,902
38,080

(7)
(4,951)
33,122

811
(1,822)
32,111

Withholding tax and notional tax deductions are made on receipt basis.

2011
Rs.’000

2010
Rs.’000
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NOTES  TO  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS (Contd.)

NOTE 8 -PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

8.1 Leasehold land – Buildings are situated on 2 blocks of land obtained on lease from the Government of Sri Lanka on a 99-year lease
ending on 31st December, 2060 and the 30-year lease ending on 23 February, 2037.

The disposal amounting to Rs. 3.3mn represents the fully depreciated left wing of the old building which was completely demolished
during the year.

8.2 Depreciation – Depreciation for the year (Note 8)
Amortisation of intangible asset (Note 11)

Amortisation of capital grant (Note 25)
Total Depreciation & Amortisation

8.3 Branch capital This represents the expenses incurred to upgrade Kandy, Kurunegala and Matara branches. These expenses
expenditure are written off over the lease period of the buildings (5 years).

NOTE 9 - CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS - BUILDINGS

Head office refurbishment
Multi-storied building

NOTE 10 - EDUCATIONAL MATERIAL

Library books
Syllabus development cost
Library-software
Multimedia English learning centre-software

Description

Buildings on Leasehold Land
Generator
Furniture
Air-Conditioners
Audio Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Computers
Canteen equipment
Branch Capital expenses

Head office refurbishment

Balance
as at

31.12.2011
Rs. ‘000

11,424
5,928

26,361
7,515
3,475

12,121
50,177

1,250
4,330

24,930

147,511

Balance
as at

01.01.2011
Rs. ‘000

14,744
3,601

11,895
4,826
1,367
3,296

24,683
213

2,598
-

67,223

Charge
for the

year
Rs. ‘000

-
466

1,418
524
211

1,765
4,609

104
866

1,870

11,833

Dep. On
(Disposals/

Write
off)

Rs. ‘000

(3,320)
-

(118)
-
-
-
-
-
-

(3,438)

Balance
as at

31.12.2011
Rs. ‘000

11,424
4,067

13,195
5,350
1,578
5,061

29,292
317

3,464
1,870

75,618

Carrying
Value
as at

31.12.2011
Rs. ‘000

-
1,861

13,166
2,165
1,897
7,060

20,885
933
866

23,060

71,893

Carrying
Value as

a t
01.01.2011
Rs. ‘000

-
2,327

14,094
2,585
2,108
8,825

20,608
1,037
1,732

53,316

Balance
as at

01.01.2011
Rs. ‘000

14,744
5,928

25,989
7,411
3,475

12,121
45,291

1,250
4,330

120,539

Additions
Rs. ‘000

-
-

517
104

-
-

4,886
-
-

24,930

30,437

(Disposals/
Write off)

Rs. ‘000

(3,320)
-

(145)
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(3,465)

Cost Accumulated Depreciation Carrying Value

2011
Rs.’000

11,833
3,107

14,940
(4,420)
10,520

2010
Rs.’000

10,810
1,869

12,679
(4,958)

7,721

 2011
Rs.’000

-
137,232
137,232

2010
Rs.’000

15,483
4,570

20,053

Balance as at
01.01.2011

Rs.’000
3,720

171
1,500
1,000
6,391

Additions
Rs.’000

806
-
-
-

806

(Amortisation)
Rs.’000

(2,890)
(171)
(375)
(788)

(4,224)

Balance as at
31.12.2011

Rs.’000
1,636

-
1,125

212
2,973
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Amortisation of educational material amounting to Rs. 875,847 (Rs. 4,224,000 - Rs. 3,348,153) is charged to direct expenditure on students,
activities.

NOTE 11 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ERP system
ERP disaster recovery system
Software licences
E-voting system
Study pack writing cost

NOTE 12 - WORK IN PROGRESS - SOFTWARE
DEVELOPMENT

Software development

NOTE 13 - INVENTORIES

Study packs
Publications
Study materials
Stationery
Consumables & others

NOTE 14 - RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Loans and advances to staff

NOTE 15 - SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Fixed deposits
Treasury bills

NOTE 16 - FACULTY OF TAXATION FUND

Balance as at 1st January
Interest for the year
Balance as at 31st December

NOTE 17 - FACULTY OF AUDITING FUND

Balance as at 1 January
Interest for the year
Balance as at 31 December

Balance as at
01.01.2011

Rs.’000

6,581
894

1,037
-
-

8,512

Balance as at
31.12.2011

Rs.’000

4,935
671
829
656

3,374
10,465

Additions
Rs.’000

-
-
-

820
4,240
5,060

(Amortisation)
Rs.’000

(1,646)
(223)
(208)
(164)
(866)

(3,107)

2011
Rs.’000

1,534
1,534

2010
Rs.’000

1,134

1,134

8,236
3,590
1,872
2,164

506
16,368

10,137
2,694
1,609
1,870

977
17,287

 2011
Rs.’000

9,893
19,595
29,488

435,250
18,000

453,250

374
24

398

360
24

384

2010
Rs.’000

5,483
22,405
27,888

261,750
198,725
460,475

344
30

374

333
27

360
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NOTE 18 - NEEDY STUDENTS’  SCHOLARSHIP  FUND

L.A. Weerasinghe Memorial Scholarship
ICASL UK Members’ Scholarship
Dalton Wijeyeratne Memorial Scholarship
Prof. Y. A. D. S. Samaratunga Memorial Fund
Prof. Kodagoda Memorial Prize Fund
Members’ Scholarship Fund
PWC Scholarship Fund
Total

Interest received and awards made under this scheme have been accounted under income balances -Scholarships and prize funds (Note 21).

NOTE 19 - MERIT SCHOLARSHIP FUNDS

General fund
Specific :
- Pelwatta Sugar Industries Ltd. Fund
- Benevolent Society Scholarship Fund
- Ernst & Young Scholarship Fund
- Miss Inoka Gunaratne Memorial Fund
Total

Interest received and awards made under this fund have been accounted under Income balances - scholarship and prize funds (Note
21). The direct cost of - Rs. 78,060  for administering the Merit Scholarship Scheme was charged under financial assistance to students.

NOTE 20 - PRIZE FUNDS

ICASL President’s Fund (1992)
B. R. De Silva Memorial Fund (1992)
A D B Talwatta Fund (1993) 
Satchithananda Memorial Fund (1993)
Kreston MNS Fund (1993)
Nivard Cabraal Fund (1994)
Reyaz Mihular Fund (1996)
D. R. Settinayake Memorial Fund (1999)
ADE de S Wijeyeratne Memorial Fund (1999)
Mohan Abeynaike Fund (1999)
KPMG Ford Rhodes Thornton & Co. Fund (1999)
Ernst & Young Fund (1999)
SJMS Associates Fund (1999) 
Sunil Piyawardena & Co. Fund (1999)
Jayasinghe & Co. Fund (2000)
Lal Nanayakkara & Co. Fund (2000)
G. C. B. Wijeyesinghe Fund (2000)

Balance as
at

01.01.2011
Rs.’000

7,183
330

6
100
202
125

7,946

Receipts
Rs.’000

58
-
-
-
-

105
60

223

(Transfers)
Rs.’000

-
(90)

-
-
-

(74)
(5)

(169)

Balance
as at

31.12.2011
Rs.’000

7,241
240

6
100
202
156

55
8,000

Balance as at
01.01.2011

Rs.’000
6,043

80
53

236
55

6,467

Receipts
Rs.’000

-

-
-

813
-

813

(Transfers)
Rs.’000

-

-
(53)

(1,024)
-

(1,077)

Balance as at
31.12.2011

Rs.’000
6,043

-
80

-
25
55

6,203

Balance as at
01.01.2011

Rs.’000

25
25

-
16
29
25
25
58
43
25

113
225
41
55
30
75
50

Donations
received

during the
year

Rs.’000

-
-

25
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(Payments
made

during the
year)

Rs.’000

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(25)
-
-
-
-
-

Balance as at
31.12.2011

Rs.’000

25
25
25
16
29
25
25
58
43
25

113
200
41
55
30
75
50
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Nihal Hettiarachchi Fund (2000)
Jayaweera & Co. Fund (2000) 
Brito Mutunayagam Memorial Fund (2003) 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Fund (2006)
K. G. H. De Silva Prize Fund (2006)
Total

Interest received and prizes awarded on behalf of these funds have been shown under income balances - Scholarship and prize funds
(Note 21).

NOTE 21 - INCOME BALANCES -SCHOLARSHIPS AND PRIZE FUNDS

Needy Scholarship Funds
- L.A.Weerasinghe Memorial Scholarship Fund
- Members’ Scholarship Fund
- Prof.Kodagoda Prize Fund
- Prof. Y. A. D. S. Samaratunga Memorial Fund

Merit scholarship Funds

- Merit scholarship - General Fund
- Pelwatta Sugar Industries Ltd. Fund
- Ernst & Young Scholarship Fund
- Miss Inoka Gunaratne Memorial Fund
- CA Sri Lanka Scholarship Funds
- Prize Funds

NOTE 22 - PUBLICATIONS FUND

Balance as at 1 January
Interest for the year
Balance as at 31 December

NOTE 23 - BEST ANNUAL REPORT COMPETITION FUND

Deshabandu Albert Page (1992)
Late Mr. Cyril Gardiner 
Hayleys Ltd. (1994)

NOTE 24 - URGENT ISSUES TASK FORCE FUND

Balance as at 1 January
Income received during the year
Balance as at 31 December

51
25

129
150
121

1,336

-
-
-
-
-

25

-
-
-
-
-

(25)

51
25

129
150
121

1,336

Balance as
at

01.01.2011
Rs.’000

Donations
received

during the
year

Rs.’000

(Payments
made

during the
year)

Rs.’000

Balance as
at

31.12.2011
Rs.’000

Balance as at
01.01.2011

Rs. ,000

2,780
-

84
243

1,567
257

-
165

-
74

5,170

Interest/
Income

transfers
for the year

Rs. ,000
2,151

100
14
12

525
20

1,024
9

500
113

4,468

(Awards
during

the year)
Rs. ,000

(3,032)
-

(88)
(96)

(1,032)
-

(1,024)
(50)

(406)
(184)

(5,912)

Balance as at
31.12.2011

Rs. ,000

1,899
100

10
159

1,060
277

-
124

94
3

3,726

2011
Rs. ,000

234
15

249

2010
Rs. ,000

216
18

234
Balance as

at
01.01.2011

Rs.’000

532
139
207
878

Contribution
/

Interest
Income
Rs.,000

37
10
14
61

(Transfers)
Rs.,000

(7)
(13)

(7)
(27)

2011
Rs.’000

242
30

272

Balance as
at

31.12.2011
Rs.,000

562
136
214
912

2010
Rs.’000

159
83

242



507I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2012'04'20
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 20.04.2012

NOTE 25 - WORLD BANK GRANT - IRQUE PROJECT

Library books
Computers
Multimedia English Learning Centre-Software
Other equipment
Motor coach
Library software

Amortisation of grant consists of amortisation of property, plant and equipment related grant amounting to Rs. 4,421,126  (Note 8)
and amortisation of grant relating to library books and software amounting to Rs. 3,348,150 (Note 10).

NOTE 26 - OTHER GRANTS

ICTA RAP Grant

 26.1 A grant of Rs. 2.5 mn. was received from the Treasury (through the Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards Monitoring Board
- SLAASMB) for the Development of Accounting and Auditing Standards. This was utilised in full for the said purpose.

NOTE 27 - PROVISION FOR RETIRING GRATUITY
Present value of the unfunded obligation

Balance as at 1st January
Interest cost
Provision for the year

Actuarial (gain)/loss
Payments made during the year
Balance as at 31st December

27.1 The provision for retiring gratuity has been made on half-month basis up to 31st December 2009.
M/S Actuarial and Management Consultants (Pvt.) Ltd., Actuaries carried out an actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan -
gratuity on 31 December, 2011. The assumptions used in determining the cost of retirement benefit are given under notes to the
financial statements. (1.3.2).

NOTE 28 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accrued charges
Staff payable
Payable on self-study courses & stationery
University of Southern Queensland
Miscellaneous payables

NOTE 29 - RECEIPTS  IN  ADVANCE

Members’ Fees
Subscriptions for renewals, IT Course & exams fees

Balance as at
01.01.2011

Rs.’000

3,417
9,893
1,511
3,659
9,067
1,500

29,047

Received
during the

year
Rs.’000

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(Amortisation)
Rs.’000

(2,185)
(1,978)

(788)
(434)

(2,008)
(375)

(7,768)

Balance as at
31.12.2011

Rs.’000

1,232
7,915

723
3,225
7,059
1,125

21,279

2011
Rs.’000

-
-

2010
Rs.’000

15
15

17,626
17,626
17,210
1,721
1,698

20,629
(422)

(2,581)
17,626

17,210
17,210
19,455

-
801

20,256
-

(3,046)
17,210

 2011
Rs.’000

31,406
13,683

1,496
-

1,364
47,249

6,224
115,891
122,115

2010
Rs.’000

16,143
14,543

111
538

2,149
33,484

4,663
94,604
99,267
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NOTE 30 - CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital Expenditure approved by the Council for which provision has not been made in the accounts amount to approximately Rs. 283 mn.
(including taxes) and details are given below:

As at 31st December

Refurbishment of Head Office Building
Construction of Multi-Storeyed Building
There are no capital expenditure commitments other than those disclosed above.

NOTE 31 - CONTINGENT  LIABILITIES

The Divisional Secretariat, Thimbirigasyaya has revised the rates on the land and claimed Rs. 7.3mn. as overdue rent for the head office
premises for the period from 2007 to 2010. The Institute has appealed against this assessment directly to the Divisional Secretariiat and also
through the line Ministry in consultation with the Hon. Minister. The Divisional Secretarial, Thimbirigasyaya has reduced the above claim
to Rs. 2.5 mn. and hence a provision for that amount has been made in the accounts.However, the negotiations are pending and the Institute
is confident that a further reduction could be obtained.

NOTE 32 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Payments are made in the ordinary course of business for any member of the Institute for certain specified activities. During the year
the following members of the council have been involved in such activities at the request of the council on behalf of the Institute and the
payments made are as follows:

Mr. Nishan Fernando
Technical activities
Educational activities

Mr. Sujeewa Mudalige
Technical activities
Educational activities

Mr. T. Dharmarajah
Educational activities
Student registration activities
Technical activities

Mr. Ganaka Amarasinghe
Educational activities

Mr. Lasantha Wickramasinghe
Technical activities

Mr. V. Kanakasabapathy
Educational activities

Mr. Channa Gunasekara
Educational activities

There are no receivables from or payables to related parties as of the Balance Sheet date.

NOTE 33 - EVENTS  AFTER  THE  BALANCE  SHEET  DATE

There are no material events occurring after the balance sheet date that require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

2011
Rs.’000

-
283,000
283,000

2010
Rs.’000

3,500
405,720
409,220

2011
Rs.’000

-
337

4
148

64
62

360

14

24

125

30

2010
Rs.’000

3
443

8
135

240
30

-

26

-

70

55
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F. B. LANDER PRIZE FUND

BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st December

ASSETS
50 Shares - Hill School Co. Ltd.
Balance at National Savings Bank

LIABILITIES
Capital

Income Account
Balance as at 01st January
Add: Interest for the year

CYRIL E. BEGBIE MEMORIAL PRIZE FUND

BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st December

ASSETS
Balance at National Savings Bank

LIABILITIES
Capital

Income Account
Balance as at 01st January
Add: Interest for the year
Less: Prize paid
Creditors - ICASL

04-582

2011 2011 2010 2010
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

521,037
24,875

500
558,745
559,245

13,333

545,912
559,245

497,525
23,512

500
533,870
534,370

13,333

521,037
534,370

2011 2011 2010 2010
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

79,311
7,889

-

177,200
177,200

10,000

87,200
80,000

177,200

86,854
7,457

(15,000)

169,311
169,311

10,000

79,311
80,000

169,311

Miscellaneous Departmental Notices

PAN  ASIA  BANKING  CORPORATION  PLC—
NUGEGODA   BRANCH

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the Bank
under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

Name of the Customer: ICM Micro Computer Systems (Pvt.) Ltd.

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Pan Asia Banking
Corporation PLC held on 28th March, 2012, it was resolved
specially and unanimously as follows:-

“Whereas ICM Micro Computer Systems (Pvt.) Ltd. as the
Obligor has made default in payment due on Mortgage Bond
Nos. 626 dated 27.02.2004, 1003 dated 21.06.2006, 1496 dated

31.03.2008 all attested by Neil Rajakaruna Hewathantry, Notary
Public of Colombo and Mortgage Bond No. 270 dated 10.06.2011
attested by Champa Hapuhinne, Notary Public of Colombo in
favour of Pan Asia Banking Corporatin PLC bearing Registration
No. PQ 48 formerly called as Pan Asia Banking Corporation
Limited and Pan Asia Bank Limited;

And whereas there is now due and owing to the Pan Asia
Banking Corporation PLC (hereinafter sometimes called as ‘the
Bank’ a sum of Rupees Eight Million Two Hundred and
Forty-six Thousand Seven Hundred and Thirty-three and cents
Fifty-four (Rs. 8,246,733.54) on account of principal and interest
up to 12.12.2011 together with interest at the rate of 19% per
annum on Rupees Seven Million Nine Hundred and Nine Thousand
Six Hundred and Ninety and cents Ninety-three (Rs. 7,909,690.93)
from 30.11.2011 till the date of payment on the said Mortgage
Bonds bearing Nos. 626,1003, 1496 and 270.
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It is hereby resolved that in terms of Section 4 of the Recovery
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, P. K.
E. Senapathi, the Licensed Auctioneer at No. 134, Baddagana
Road, Kotte be authorized and empowered to sell by Public
Auction the property mortgaged to the Bank morefully described
in the Schedule hereto and for the recovery of the said sum of
Rupees Eight Million Two Hundred and Forty-six Thousand
Seven Hundred and Thirty-three and cents Fifty-four
(Rs. 8,246,733.54) together with interest as aforesaid from the
aforesaid dates to date of sale and costs and monies recoverable
under Section 13 of the said Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 less payments (if any) since
received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 7
depicted in Plan No. 2959 dated 21st March, 2004 made by J. G.
Kammanankada, Licensed Surveyor (being a resurvey of Lot 7
depicted in Plan No. 1148 dated 15th September, 1971 made by H.
Anil Peiris, Licensed Surveyor) from and out of the Land called
“Madatiyagahawatta alias Maragahawatta” presently called and
known as St. Thomas Church Premises situated at Pitakotte (Ward
No. 6) together with the buildings, trees, plantations and everything
else standing thereon bearing Assessment No.326, Kotte Road,
Pitakotte, within the Municipal Council limits of Sri
Jayawardhanapura Kotte, in the Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the
District of Colombo, Western Province and which said Lot 7 is
bounded on the North by Road marked Lot 8 in plan No. 1148, on
the East by Lot 6 in Plan No. 1148 bearing Assessment No. 326/2,
Kotte Road, on the South by Private Road and on the West by Kotte
Road and containing in extent Eleven decimal Eight Seven Perches
(0A., 0R., 11.87P.) according to the said Plan No. 2959 and registered
under M 2965/190 at Delkanda Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

PONNAIAH DHARMARATNAM,
Manager, Recoveries.

04-513

PEOPLE’S   BANK—MORAWAKA   BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was uanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 29.11.2010.

Whereas Duminda Mahesh Mallawage, Addara Pathiranage
Padmaseeli, Weerasinghe Samantha Nishanthi and Chaminda
Kulesh Mallawage have made default of payment due on Mortgage
Bond bearing No. 5153 dated 27.04.2009 attested by T. N.
Rubasinghe, Notary Public, Matara, in favour of the People’s

Bank and there is now due and owing to the said People’s Bank
a sum of Rupees One Hundred and Sixty-seven Thousand One
Hundred and Eighty (Rs. 167,180) only and Rupees Seven
Hundred and Forty-four Thousand and Ninety and cents Fifty-
seven (Rs. 744,090.57) and Rupees Three Hundred and Ninety-
four Thousand Four Hundred and Forty-five (Rs. 394,445) only
on the said mortgage Bond No. 5153.

The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the powers
vested by the People’s Bank Act, No 29 of 1961 as amended by
Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property and
premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Mortgage Bond
No. 5153 be sold by Public Auction by G. P. Ananda, Licensed
Auctioneer of Matara for recovery of the said sum of Rupees One
Hundred and Sixty-seven Thousand One Hundred and Eighty
(Rs. 167,180) only with further interest on Rupees One Hundred
and Sixty-seven Thousand One Hundred and Eighty (Rs. 167,180)
only at Twenty-six per centum (26%) per annum from 01.12.2009
and Rupees Seven Hundred and Forty-four Thousand and Ninety
and cents Fifty-seven (Rs. 744,090.57) with further interest on
Rupees Seven Hundred and Forty-four Thousand and Ninety and
cents Fifty-seven (Rs. 744,090.57) only at Twenty-six per
centum (26%) per annum from 01.02.2009 and Rupees Three
Hundred and Ninety-four Thousand Four Hundred and Forty-
five (Rs. 394,445) with further interest on Rupees Three Hundred
and Ninety-four Thousand Four Hundred and Forty-five
(Rs. 394,445) at Twenty-six per centum (26%) per annum from
23.08.2009 to date of sale with costs and moneys recoverable
under section ‘29L’ of the said People’s Bank Act, less payment
(if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined Lot A2 of Lot A depicted in Plan
No. 3171 dated 28.05.1943 made by S. E. Ferdinand, Licensed
Surveyor certified by Wolly Nagahawatta on 05.03.1988 and filed
of record in District Court Matara in Case No. P/12996 of the land
called Amunudolakumbura alias Badalge Dolamunekumbura situated
at Weliwa, Morawak Korale, Matara District, Southern Province,
which said Lot A2 is bounded on the North-west by Lot A1 of the
same land, East by Akuressa-Deniyaya Main road, South by Lot B
of the Original land, West by Pangirihena, now known as Rubber
Estate containing in extent Twenty Perches (0A., 0R., 20P.) and
together with all the buildings, plantations and everything else
standing thereon and registered at G 12/278 Morawaka District Land
Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager (Matara).

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No. 215, Anagarika Dharmapala Mawatha,
Matara.

04-570
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